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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Rowlandsville Mill, located along side Octavora Creek in Cecil County off Route
308 in the village of Rowlandsville, is a frame, gable roofed structure of three
stories plus attic. The bottom story and foundation are constructed of rubble
fieldstone, with concentrations of large local stones at the four corners suggesting
quoining.  In recent years the mill has been reroofed in asphalt shingles.

The four-bay wide, chapboarded east facade which faces the road contains the followirg
openings on the basement level (reading from SE to NE corner): A window boarded up
by a shutter made of vertical planks secured on one side by two large strap hinges;
a bolted door; a small rectangular opening nearly at ground level intended probably
as a ventilator window; another window partially boarded up; a second door encased
in subsequent vertical planking, featuring a slightly projecting narrow wooden
strip lintel; and attached to the northeast corner a small brick shed addition
with eastern doorway. All of the windows possess simple timber surrounds with
narrow, slightly projecting timber sills. The second story contains a similar
sequence of window, wider door (for loading vehicles below with sacks of flour),
window, regular sized door--all detailed in the same manner and boarded shut. The

o €hird story varies slightly: window, regular door, window, window; two of these
windows retain their 6/6, double hung sash with assorted muntons in situ but all
panes of glass missing. The northeast corner window is open, missing all of its sash.

The north gable end features two boarded up windows on the second story surmounted
by two similar open windows in the third story (still with vestiges of sash, no
glass), and two smaller windows in the gable shadowed by the deep overhang of the
eaves. The stone first story flares out at an angle nearly a foot to create a
massive watertable by the thicker walled foundation below. The brick shed addition
with asphalt roof covers less than a quarter of the basement wall.

The west side of the mill facing Octavara Creek is articulated by two stories of
windows corresponding to those elsewhere on the building (top story open with
'marginal sash members). Due to the slope of the ground toward the Creek, the
stone portion on this facade accommodates two levels of three windows each.

On the south gable end where the undershot wheel was located and where evidence of
the millrace exists in the depression extending several feet in front, and where
part of the drive mechanism still exists in situ, the fenestration resembles that
of the north facade except for the stone basement level. There, at the southwest
corner is a doorway, and at the opposite corner a window.: The top four windows
are open with little or no sash left. This facade is suffering most from deteri-
oration; plywood patches have been applied between the door and second story
window, but the studs are exposed where the clapboarding has rotted away at the
southeast corner. The same corner suffers from poor drainage as is evidenced by
a serious crack in the stonework from below the wooden sill diagonally to the
ground on the east facade. '

Although the interior floorboards are missing in several locations between the b~"

ment level and the second story, the structure is sufficiently sound to bear the' S
weight of most of its original machinery.
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The following recapitulates John McGrain's research on Rowlandsville Mill, carried
out in conjunction with his Maryland Molinography:

A mill known as the Rowland Mill was shown at this location on Hauducoeur's map

of 18 . The 1850 manufacturer's census listed John Christy (sic) as the owner

of a water mill: $2,000 capital investment; 2 employees, 2 run of stones, 1 saw, and
output of 220 barrels of flour, 1,000 bushels of meal, 300 bushels of corn and oats,
and 150,000 feet of timber. The 1858 Martenet map notes the Rowland and Christie
mill at the confluence of Octoraro Creek and Basin Run.

o John McGrain lists two references to the village of Rowlandsville that appear in
newspapers in the winter of 1851-52 along with the following data about the mill's
increasing prosperity: :

(1) Cecil Whig, Reember 27, 1851, p. 1 "Skerh of New Valley", contains information
about the shoe peg factory at Harmony with no data on Rowlandsville, but a
Mr. Shermer of New Valley is credited with "having a church erected in the
place" . . . a Methodist Protestant Church.

: v

(2) Cecil Whig, January 17, 1852, p. 2: "Letter from Rowlandsville.,. The mills
here are frozen up and standing still. The Octoraro is frozen close, and
the Susquehanna is in a very rough condition owing to the hard freezing . . ."

The atlas of 187_ showed Davis, Christie and Company as millers at Rowlands-
ville on Basbn Run and they were also atlas Patrons. The atlas spelled the
Stream name "Bason" and some colonial records had spelled it "Bastard".
Moses N. Gilespie was miller and atlas patron.

The 1880 census of manufacturing (also at Hall of Records) listed Davis and
Christie's capital investmenfhs $15,000; production was $17,000 per annum,
including 1,934 barrels of flour. Now with 3 run of stones, the mill was
doing 25% custom work and had 60 bushel per hour elevator. A 60-Ffoot fall
on Basin Run drove 2 turbines at 280 rpm to develop 44 horsepower.,

1880 Md. State Business Directory listed George M. Christie and Davis,
o~ Christie and Co., at Rowlandsville.

The periodical, American Miller, Vol. 10 (July 1, 1882), p. 317 notes that
"Davis & Christie of Rowlandsville, Md., are increasing their capacity, and

Egvg Egt ig Gargﬁn City Eg{igiers, furnished by the Garden City Mill
inishi 0, 1icago .
CONTINUE "ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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Ultimately the mill was sold to the State of Maryland by Ralph Hostetter.

Directly across the Octaroro Creek from the mill was Frey's Forge, an ironworks built
at the end of the eighteenth century. Quoting again ffom John McGrain's Molinography:

Frey's Forge was built about 1795 by John Churchman and Samuel Hughes on a 3,000
acre tract. It came into possession of John Jones and Thomas Rogers and passed

to John Frey- and Matthew Irwin in 1801. It was located on Horseshoe Bend of
Octoraroc Creek and came to be called Freyg Forge. 1Iron had been made here before
1795 by John Jones and Thomas Rogers, later by John Frey, Matthew Irwin and

Joseph Roman. It was sold to McCullough Iron Company in 1859 and continued

until 1892. The trademark was "Harvey's Patent Sheet Iron". A drawing of ruins )
of "McCullough Iron CO. . . . . First mill site in 1795 [revealg/ McCullough Tron
Co. bought the mill in 1859 and made sheet iron. [It wag/ destnoyed by flre.
Backroadlng Through Cecil County, Md., 1977, p. 54. =

Finally, the industrial complex that was nineteenth century Rowlandsville was completed
by the Octararo Rolling Mill, built in 1828 at the mouth of the Octararo Creek and
= described by McGrain as follows: .

The 1850 census listed Joseph ‘Roman and Co. rolling mill and. ba bark mill with
$26,000 investment, 23 employees, and 1 water powered furnace. Output %as
240 tons sheet iron and 150 tons ground bark ($28,000), made from 300 tons
pig iron, 250 tons coal, and an additional 14,000 bushels coal..

The works was acquired by Parke and Son of Rising Sun, and later McCullough

Iron Company. By another account, the works had 1 each puddling and heating

furnace and 1 train of rolls driven by water power; in 1856, the mill produced
262 tons sheet iron. »Shutdbwn took place in 1893, RIOM, p. 175. -

(RIOM - Report on the Iron Ores of Maryland with an Account of the Iron Industry,
Joseph T. Singerwald, Jr., Md. Geologlcal Survey, Johns Hopkins Univ. Press,
Baltlmore, 1911.)
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The Rowlgndsville Mill has suffercd substantial deterioration
due to the collapse of the two-story stonc foundation wall on the
south gable end. This wall along the millrace has completely
fallen in except for approximately four feet at each corner.
Because of this collapse, the framing section at the south gable
end 1s severely sagging.

The interior of the mill contains mostly machinery from
late nincteenth century renovations in the mill. From the early
period, there remains one sct of stoneswith associated machiner y
and occasional pieces of hardware. The sct of stones has a chair
and hopper that appeared to be original. Strap hinges on two
exterior shutters and several interior doors arc from the period
of construction of the mill. Of particular interest is the long
strap hinges on the upper section of a door on the east facade and
the wood box lock on this scction of the door (the lower section
of the door has been removed). The attached inventory lists other

mill machinery found within the structure.
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ADDENDA

In 1984 the Department of Matural Resources contracted
with Joe Getty to conduct a follow-up survey of selected
historic properties on DNR lands. DNR funded the field

survey and photography but did not prepare finished cCOopY.

‘The attached photocopy pages were forwarded to the

Maryland Historical Trust to supplement existing files.
All original material and photographs remain in the possession
of the Department of Natural Resources under the supervision

of Ross Kimmel (x3771) .
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Rowlandsville Mill
Rowlandsville
(Susquehanna State Park)
south gable end

B. Deale 11/78
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Rowlandsville Mill

Rowlandsville

(Susquehanna State Park)

southeast elevation

B. Deale 11/78
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Rowlandsville Mill
Rowlandsville
(Susquehanna State Park)
Detail: window opening SE corner
B. Deale 11/78




